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Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: [External] Re: BOE RFC

 
From: Ascher, Seth M <seth.ascher@oah.nc.gov>  
Sent: Friday, January 9, 2026 3:33 PM 
To: Collins, Ryan <Ryan.Collins@dpi.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: Re: [External] Re: BOE RFC 
 
Ryan, 
 
G.S. 150B-21.6 has requirements for incorporation of material by reference, which is what you are doing here. 
https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/PDF/BySection/Chapter_150B/GS_150B-21.6.pdf 

The style guide, while potentially out of date in some places, has a good example of language to use for 
incorporation in Chapter 11: https://www.oah.nc.gov/documents/rules/administrative-rule-style-guide-updated-
april-2021/download. Most agencies rely on some version of that language when they incorporate by reference. 
 
The incorporation only has to be done once, as long as it is clear what you are doing. For example, DOL has a rule 
with all their incorporations: http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2013%20-%20labor/chapter%2007%20-
%20office%20of%20occupational%20safety%20and%20health/subchapter%20a/13%20ncac%2007a%20.0301.
pdf.  
 
You can also do it individually as items come up. A recent EMC (15A NCAC 02B .0226) example does this: 
https://www.oah.nc.gov/emc-final-revised-rules-1/open 
 
For your rules, the first question is are these sections of the CFR already incorporated somewhere in your rules. If 
so, I just need to know where that is. If they are not, you'll need to do it in these rules. It is up to the agency how 
much they want to incorporate, either each specific CFR rule which will require its own language, or you can do a 
whole part of the CFR at once (assuming you want to incorporate the whole thing).  
 
Hopefully this makes sense. Happy to discuss it further with you next week.   
 
 
 
Seth Ascher 
Counsel to the North Carolina Rules Review Commission 
Office of Administrative Hearings 
(984) 236-1934 
  
  

 
Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized 
state official. 
  

From: Ryan Collins <Ryan.Collins@dpi.nc.gov> 
Sent: Friday, January 9, 2026 2:28 PM 
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To: Ascher, Seth M <seth.ascher@oah.nc.gov> 
Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov> 
Subject: [External] Re: BOE RFC  
  
CAUTION: External email. Do not click links or open attachments unless verified. Report suspicious emails with the Report Message 
button located on your Outlook menu bar on the Home tab. 

 
Hello Seth, 
 
Thank you for your feedback. For two of the rules, you included the following question: 
 
Have you incorporated the various CFR provisions referenced here in another rule? If so, where? 
 
Could you elaborate on this question? This the first rule I've done that has relied on authority from 
federal law, so if I've missed something in the APA or RRC rules related to this, I'd appreciate your 
guidance on that. We have several more rules in the pipeline that reference federal law so I'd like to 
be proactive in revising those as well. 
 
Ryan 
 
 

Ryan M. Collins, J.D., M.Ed.  

Assistant General Counsel  

Office of General Counsel 

ryan.collins@dpi.nc.gov  

984.236.2255 (o)  

 


